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MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Senator Catherine Breen, Senate Chair 
  Representative Teresa Pierce, House Chair 
  Joint Standing Committee on Appropriations and Financial Affairs 
 
FROM: Senator Louie Luchini, Senate Chair 

Representative Chris Caiazzo, House Chair 
Joint Standing Committee on Veterans and Legal Affairs 

   
DATE:  March 18, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Recommendations on the Governor’s Proposed Biennial Budget, LD 221, An Act 

Making Unified Appropriations and Allocations for the Expenditures of State 
Government, General Fund and Other Funds and Changing Certain Provisions of 
the Law Necessary to the Proper Operations of State Government for the Fiscal 
Years Ending June 30, 2021, June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2023 

 
 
On Monday, March 8, 2021, Monday, March 15, 2021 and Wednesday, March 17, 2021, the 
Joint Standing Committee on Veterans and Legal Affairs met to review the items in the 
Governor’s proposed biennial budget pertaining to the agencies under the committee’s 
jurisdiction.  The committee voted to accept all of the initiatives and language set forth in the 
biennial budget, except as described below.  All votes were unanimous of those present at the 
time of the vote and are reflected in the attached report-back template.  In addition, although 
Representative Corey was unable to attend portions of the meetings on March 15 and March 17, 
he subsequently indicated his agreement with each of the committee’s unanimous votes. 
 
Department of Defense, Veterans and Emergency Management – Ref #s 646, 647, 649, 650 
and 651 (unanimously voted OUT). 
 
The VLA Committee believes that the four initiatives proposed in the Governor’s biennial 
budget, referenced below, will have lasting negative impacts on the services provided to Maine’s 
veterans by the Maine Bureau of Veterans’ Services. We have therefore voted unanimously (of 
those present) to move them out of the budget. 
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• Elimination of staff position – Ref. #646 (p. 31).This initiative eliminates a part-time Office 
Associate II position that was created by P.L. 2019, ch. 504 An Act To Amend the Veterans’ 
Homelessness Prevention Coordination Program, which derived from a VLA Committee 
amendment to LD 184 in the 129th Legislature.  This law established the Veterans’ 
Homelessness Prevention Partnership through which MBVS partners with human-services 
based volunteer organizations to provide transitional housing to homeless veterans in the 
State.  As we noted in our report-back on the supplemental budget, the committee strongly 
disagrees with the elimination of this newly created part-time position, not only because it 
demonstrates a lack of commitment to Maine’s veterans experiencing homelessness, but also 
because it adds additional strain to the already overworked MBVS staff.
MBVS staff have repeatedly risen to the challenge whenever the Legislature creates new 
programs to serve veterans, especially programs targeting veterans experiencing 
homelessness, even when the Legislature has not funded additional staff to provide these 
services. The VLA Committee has fought hard for a few additional positions created in recent 
years in the MBVS, but those instances are the exception rather than the rule. MBVS’s 
practice of continually shouldering new programs without additional staff is well-intentioned 
and commendable but ultimately unsustainable.  For this reason, we strongly urge the AFA 
Committee to reject the elimination of this position in the biennial budget, just as the 
Legislature rejected the proposal to freeze this position in the supplemental budget earlier this 
month.

• Two-year elimination of funding for Veterans Homelessness Prevention Coordination –
Ref. #651 (p. 33).  This initiative would eliminate the $100,000 annual funding in each year 
of the biennium for the Veterans Homelessness Prevention Coordination program established 
by P.L. 2019, ch. 504.  This program provides $50/night per diem payments to human 
services-based volunteer organizations that provide transitional housing to homeless veterans 
in the State.  As the Director of MBVS testified in a hearing held this past Monday on another 
bill (LD 658): “Over the past few years, the monthly rate of veteran homelessness in Maine 
has hovered around 100 veterans.  This past year, that number has jumped to over
180. The effects of the pandemic have caused the spike, further stressing an already sparse 
housing stock.”  Given the economic downturn and this dramatic increase in the number of 
identified veterans experiencing homelessness in the State, we believe that it is critical to 
preserve the funding for this newly established program.

Related concern: Lapsing nature of the account. As we discussed the initiative in Ref. 
#651, the VLA Committee was dismayed to learn that the $100,000 annual funding for the 
Veterans Homelessness Prevention Coordination program established by P.L. 2019, ch.504 
has been placed into an account that lapses to the General Fund if funds are not spent each 
fiscal year.  As the language of 37-B M.R.S. § 513-A(3) demonstrates, we believe that the 
Legislature intended that the annual General Fund appropriation would be placed in a 
nonlapsing account: 

3. Fund established.  The Veterans' Homelessness Prevention Partnership Fund, a
nonlapsing fund, is established under the bureau for the purpose of receiving funds from 
state, federal and other sources, including donations from private citizens, corporations and
entities for the purpose of this section. The bureau shall use the fund to provide
reimbursement to human services‑based volunteer organizations that provide transitional
housing to homeless veterans and to otherwise carry out the purposes of this section.
(Emphasis added.)

http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/bills/getPDF.asp?paper=HP0147&item=5&snum=129
http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/bills/getPDF.asp?paper=HP0147&item=5&snum=129
http://www.mainelegislature.org/legis/bills/getPDF.asp?paper=HP0147&item=5&snum=129
http://legislature.maine.gov/doc/5562
http://legislature.maine.gov/legis/statutes/37-B/title37-Bsec513-A.html
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We respectfully request the AFA Committee’s assistance in ensuring that all current and 
future appropriations for this program are placed in this nonlapsing fund. 

 Cemetery maintenance and staff – Ref. #647 (p.32).  This initiative would eliminate 
General Fund funding for an office staff position and reduce the hours of 2 temporary 
groundskeeping staff positions for the veterans’ cemeteries in Caribou and Augusta.  These 
staff reductions will require already overworked staff to absorb additional workload to ensure 
that Maine veterans and their families have the assistance they need.  We urge the AFA 
Committee to join us in rejecting this initiative in order to ensure that the services provided to 
veterans, as well as to the families of recently deceased veterans, are not delayed or hindered. 

 

 Use of federal plot allowances to absorb certain General Fund expenses – Ref. #s 649 
and 650 (pp.32 and 33).  Although mindful of the need to balance the budget, the committee 
simply cannot agree with the proposal to utilize the federal fund Plot Allowance account on a 
permanent basis to absorb costs traditionally financed through the General Fund.  This 
initiative provides for an ongoing transfer of approximately $131,000 per year in Maine 
Veterans’ Cemetery System expenses for vehicle repairs, electricity, building repairs, 
equipment repairs, fuel, cleaning contracts and rubbish disposal contracts from the General 
Fund to the federal fund Plot Allowance account.  As you may know, MBVS receives burial 
markers and a $743 plot-interment allowance from the United States Department of Veterans 
Affairs for the burial of each eligible veteran in the Maine Veterans’ Cemetery System. Two-
thirds of these funds are placed in the account that will be affected by these initiatives.1  We 
urge the AFA Committee to reject these initiatives. 

 
Department of the Secretary of State – new initiative (unanimously voted IN) 

In addition to taking votes on the initiatives and language parts included within the report-back 
template and discussed above, the VLA Committee also voted unanimously (of those present) in 
favor of an amendment to the biennial budget proposed by the Secretary of State, which can be 
found on page 51 of the attachment and is described below. 
 
 Bureau of Elections and Corporations – Elections Coordinator Position - new initiative 

(p. 51). Upon learning that staff within the Bureau of Elections and Corporations 
accumulated more than 73 weeks of overtime in calendar-year 2020 fulfilling election-related 
duties, the VLA Committee asked the Secretary of State to perform a cost-benefit analysis 
comparing the costs associated with staff overtime against the cost to hire additional staff.  
The Secretary of State’s analysis can be found on page 52 of the attachment and 
demonstrates that it would take the equivalent of 1.4 full-time positions to perform the work 
accomplished by bureau staff during overtime hours.  The Secretary of State explained in our 
work session on March 15th that 2020 was not an anomaly, the Elections Division incurred 
33 weeks of overtime in 2016 and 45 weeks of overtime in 2018.   

 

                                                 
1 Pursuant to 37-B M.R.S.A. §512, the remaining 1/3 of the federal plot interment allowances received by 

MBVS are deposited in the Maine Veterans’ Memorial Cemetery System Care Fund, which was established “for the 
purpose of ensuring ongoing care and maintenance of veterans' graves within the Maine Veterans' Memorial 
Cemetery System after plot interment allowances for burials within the system are no longer received from the 
United States Department of Veterans Affairs.” 
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 The duties of the Elections Division have increased significantly over the past few years with 
new voting programs (Presidential Primary and RCV) on top of an increase in people’s veto 
petitions and frequent legal challenges.  Stretching the current staff too thin and relying on 
overtime hours for regular, ongoing functions fails to recognize the important responsibilities 
of the Elections Division. We support the establishment of this new position because it is 
critical to providing training and guidance to municipal election officials and the 
management of the central voter registration system, including the oversight for data integrity 
and voter records maintained at the municipal level.  Additionally, the position would 
support centralized election management to ensure compliance with federal law and 
uniformity of process, such as deployment of uniform voting tabulators and the 
processing/issuance of UOCAVA ballots.    

 
 Although the Secretary of State originally asked the committee to consider establishing 2 

new positions, the VLA Committee unanimously voted to support an amendment 
establishing a single new Elections Coordinator position, the text of which can be found on 
page 51 of the attachment.  

 
Adult Use Marijuana Regulatory Coordination Fund – Ref. #179 (p.2):   
 
In light of Commissioner Figueroa’s testimony at the public hearing on March 2, 2021, that this 
initiative will be removed in the change package, the VLA Committee abstained from voting on 
this initiative. 
 
 
Thank you for inviting and for considering our input on the biennial budget.  We are available to 
answer any questions that you may have. 
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